

DISCOVER LIFE

This book contains prayers and confessions based on God's Word that you can speak over your life, your family, and your situations. As you do, believe that His grace and anointing are being released to help and bless you in every area of life.

For more resources, as well as contact info and service times, please visit discoverlife.cc.



CONTENTS

Prayer for Health and Healing	1
Prayer for the Lost	3
Prayer for Revival	5
Prayer for your Church	6
Prayer for your Pastor	8
Prayer for Marriage	10
Prayer for Renewing the Mind	11
Prayer for Prosperity	13
Prayer for Protection	15
Prayer for the Government	16
Confession: In Him	17
Confession: I Believe	18
Confession: In Jesus	20
Confession: I am the Righteousness of God in Christ	23
Confession: Love	23
Confession: What I am Not	25
Confession: What I Confess, I Possess	26
Confession: Parents Over Their Children	27
Confession: Children	28
Confession: Husband	29
Confession: Wife	30
Confession: Student	31
Confession: Youth	33
Confession: Faith	34

PRAYER FOR HEALTH AND HEALING

Father, in the name of Jesus, I confess Your Word concerning healing. As I do this I believe and say that Your Word will not return to You void, but will accomplish what it says it will. Therefore, I believe in the name of Jesus, that I am healed according to 1 Peter 2:24. It is written in Your Word that Jesus Himself took my infirmities and bore my sicknesses. So with great boldness and confidence I say, on the written Word, that I am redeemed from the curse of sickness and I refuse to tolerate its symptoms.

Satan, I declare to you, in the name of Jesus, that you have no authority over me, and you are rendered powerless because I bind you from operating against me in any way. I am loosed from your assignment in my life. I declare that I am a child of the King and the property of God Almighty. I therefore give you no place in my life. I choose to abide in the secret place of the Most High God. I remain stable and fixed under the shadow of the Almighty, whose power no foe can withstand.

Now Father, because of my relationship with You, and because Jesus is my Lord and Saviour, I have the assurance of Your Word that the angel of the Lord encamps around me, and delivers me from every evil work. No evil shall befall me, nor plague come near my dwelling. Your Word abides in me and brings me perfect soundness of mind and wholeness in body and spirit. Your word is life and health, medication, to all my flesh. The law of the Spirit of life in Christ Jesus has made me free from the law of sin and death. I have on the whole armour of God today and I take the shield of faith and quench all the fiery darts of the evil one. Jesus is the High Priest of my profession and I maintain my confession of faith in You and Your Word. I have full assurance of health and healing in my body now, in Jesus name. I want to please You and so I am activating my faith by speaking Your Word to my body. I forgive without reservation in every area of my life, and I believe with my heart that those things I say come to pass. I desire, pray, and believe that I receive my healing now. I will act as though I am healed because your Word says that I am healed. In Jesus' name, amen.

- Isaiah 55:11
- Galatians 3:13
- Ephesians 6:10-18
- Psalms 34:7, 91:1, 10
- Romans 8:2
- Psalms 112:2, 7
- 2 Timothy 1:7

- Matthew 8:17
- James 4:7
- 2 Corinthians 10:4
- Proverbs 4:20-22
- Hebrews 4:12, 14, 11:6
- Mark 11:23-25

PRAYER FOR THE LOST

Father, I come to you in	the name of Jesus, and I lift
before You today and I	thank you for him (her/them). I stand in the
gap for him (her/them)	right now (Ezek. 22:30). I thank and praise
You that Your word say	ys that it's your will that all men should be
saved (1 Tim. 2:4).	
So I pray for	_ right now and set a hedge of protection
around him (her/them)	(Ezek. 22:30). I set a wall around him
(her/them) so the enemy	y cannot affect him (her/them) anymore.
Now Father I pray that	the veil that has been set over his (her/their)
eyes would be lifted. W	here the enemy has blinded his (her/their)
eyes from seeing the tru	th I declare that the light of Your Word is
shining through, that	would receive revelation, the
living Word of God, so	that the Word would be life unto him
(her/them). (John 6:63,	2 Cor. 4:4). Father I pray, as your Word
commands, for You to	send labourers into the harvest field (Matt.
9:38), and	is a part of the harvest so Father send
labourers into	's life to share the gospel with him
(her/them) that he (she/	they) would come to a saving knowledge of
Your Son.	

You said in Your Word to ask You for wisdom (James 1:5) so I ask You now for wisdom that I may be able to speak a right word

in season to . Now Father where that labourer is me, send me. Satan, I take authority over you right now in the name of Jesus, and I bind your work in the life of ______. I command you to take your hands off of and to cease any and all of your operations against him (her/them) right now. I say that you are bound and your power in his (her/their) life is broken. I tear down strongholds in the mind of right now. I break down every proud argument against God and every wall that can be built to keep _____ from finding God (2 Corinthians 10:5 TLB). I break the power of man's logic, the world's mind-set, and pride over him (her/them) right now. I pray that the smoke screen Satan has put in front of him (her/them) would be removed. Now Father I thank You that the light of Your glorious gospel is no longer hid from (2 Cor. 4:4 TLB). I thank you that his (her/their) eyes are open and they are turned from darkness to light, and from the power of Satan to God, that he (she/they) may receive forgiveness of sins, and inheritance among them which are sanctified by faith in Jesus (Acts 26:18). I thank You that You provided the weapons to capture and bring him (her/them) into one whose hearts' desire is obedience to Christ (2 Cor. 10:5 TLB). In Jesus' name, amen.

PRAYER FOR REVIVAL

Revival is God responding to the cry of people's hearts; it is first individual and second corporate.

Father God, because You care for Your people and want all mankind to have life, You desire revival. Your revival brings life and nourishment, preservation, and restoration. Thank You for sending Jesus to give us Your abundant life.

Lord, start revival in me first. I am Your servant and I place myself in position to receive revival. I feed on the Scriptures as sheep feed in green pastures because Your words are life to me. Holy Spirit of God, You raised Jesus from the dead and You dwell in me. So, I yield to You to energize my spirit, restore my soul, and rejuvenate my mortal body. I renew my mind with Your Word. In my innermost being is a well of living water and I am revived! Revival not only is life to me, but life to everyone who calls on the Name of the LORD. Therefore, I intercede on behalf of the people. I call upon You as the God of Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob. I call upon the mighty Name of Jesus. All of mankind needs life, Lord! All of mankind needs revival because it is life - Your life.

I speak and sow seeds of revival everywhere I go. I send forth angels to reap the harvest of revival all over the world. I put my hand to the sickle to reap the rich harvest of revival in my home, my church, my community, in the marketplace, on the job, in my

country and in all the world. Pour Yourself out on the people. Lord of the harvest, send forth laborers, positioning them in strategic places to minister as You pour out Your Spirit on all flesh. Almighty God, show Yourself mighty and strong with signs and wonders. Holy Spirit, breathe on all the people of the world. In Jesus' name, amen.

- Proverbs 4:20-22
- Romans 8:11
- Colossians 3:10
- John 4:14, 7:38
- 2 Chronicles 16:9

- John 6:63
- Ephesians 4:23-24
- John 3:16-17, 10:10
- Matthew 13:39, 9:38
- Romans 15:19

PRAYER FOR YOUR CHURCH

Father, we come before You in the Name of Jesus. We are of the same mind and we call forth those You want at Family Church from the north, south, east, and west. We do not set our minds on high things, but associate with the humble. As Your Word goes forth, it shall not return to You void, but it shall accomplish what it is sent out to do. We thank You that all of our departments have faithful workers in abundance. We have all types of skillful people for every manner of work. We serve in the ministry of helps, not out of compulsion, but joyfully! Family Church is a training centre for the ministry gifts, to equip the saints for the work of the ministry, and a place of healing for those who are hurting in spirit,

soul, and body. Our people are stable, rooted and grounded in Your Word, and not carried about with strange doctrines.

As we operate in Your plan of prosperity, all our needs are met. We pay tithes and give offerings. You supply seed to the sower, and multiply the seed we have sown. You make all grace abound toward us. With Your wisdom we can meet the needs of people who fellowship here through teachings, worship, programs, and purposing in our hearts to trust and rely totally on You.

We thank You for providing a place for us to worship and carry out the vision You have given Pastors Gary and Beth. We are a people that love, care, have concern, pray, serve, help, forgive, and are patient with each other.

Lord, You are faithful and You are adding to Family Church daily. You have established us and will guard us from the evil one, so we lift our hands to praise You, knowing that You who began a good work in us will be faithful to complete it. In Jesus' name, amen.

PRAYER FOR YOUR PASTOR

I will give you shepherds according to My heart, who will feed you with knowledge and understanding. - Jeremiah 3:15

Father, in the name of the Lord Jesus, I pray and confess that the Spirit of the Lord is upon my Pastors, Gary and Beth. The spirit of counsel and might, the spirit of knowledge, and the fear of the Lord rest upon them according to Isaiah 11:1-2. I pray Lord that you give my pastors courage to preach the truth without fear of man. I pray that they will never be afraid of me and be able to look in my face and tell me the truth whether I like it or not according to 2 Timothy 4:1-4. I pray that you will continue to anoint and qualify them to preach the good news to the meek, poor, wealthy, and afflicted. Send them Lord, to bind up the broken-hearted, to proclaim liberty to the physically and spiritually captive, to open the eyes of those who are blinded, and to carry out the ministry of the Lord Jesus according to Isaiah 61:1-2.

I pray and agree with my pastors that no weapon formed against them shall prosper, and every tongue that rises against them in judgement shall be shown to be wrong according to Isaiah 4:17. I ask you Lord to give Pastors Gary and Beth encouragement and strength, to help them stay at the height of integrity and faithfulness, and to keep preaching the uncompromised Word of God. Help them Lord to hold fast the form of sound words and be able to commit the leadership principles and truths to other faithful men and women. I ask you Lord to bless my pastors and their family with rest, peace, and prosperity. Guard them Lord with safety in all they do. I choose life for my pastors, and so I pray for them Lord and I undergird them with a good conversation and a clean attitude. I know they are anointed to be my pastors; therefore, I put myself in agreement with them and submit to their leadership in the Lord according to Jeremiah 3:15 and Jeremiah 23:3-4.

I pray for my pastors, that doors of utterance will be opened unto them and that the Word of God will have free course with others like it has with us so that they may proclaim the mystery of Christ clearly in all places you cause their feet to tread according to Colossians 4:2-3. Thank you Lord for the wonderful gift you gave me in my pastors. Help me to always receive them and their message properly. In Jesus name, amen.

- Isaiah 11:1-2
- Isaiah 61:1-2
- Jeremiah 23:4

- 2 Timothy 4:1-4
- Isaiah 54:17
- Colossians 4:2-3

PRAYER FOR MARRIAGE

Heavenly Father, we come before you today and lift our marriage to you. We declare that we will always be kind to each other, tender-hearted, and always forgiving. We confess now that we will always be moved with compassion and that love will direct our lives. We choose again this day who we will serve, and declare what the Word says; as for me and my house, we will serve the Lord. We will continue to speak your words over our marriage and each other because they are spirit and they are life. We will walk out our marriage daily by your Word, and live that Word in our home. We will continue to be willing and obedient to the Word of God that we know.

HUSBAND:

Father, I choose today to love my wife even as Christ has loved the church. I lay my life down for her, loving her, cherishing her, and caring for her needs, even before my own. Your Word says I am rooted and grounded in love so I purpose to show that love towards my wife today. My wife is blessed and highly favored among women. She is a virtuous woman who prospers in everything she does at home, work, in business, and in other affairs. My relationship with my wife is good; together we have obtained the favor of the Lord. As Christ is the head of the church, I am the

head of my wife. I ask for wisdom to lead and guide us into all that you have planned for us. Direct our steps Lord, lead us by your Word and Spirit. Let your kingdom settle down over our marriage. In Jesus' name, amen.

WIFE:

My husband is blessed and highly favored among men because God is with him. He sits in places of authority among other leaders. I respect and reverence my husband. I notice him, regard him, honor him, prefer him, venerate and esteem him. I defer to him, praise him, love and admire him exceedingly. I encourage my husband and build him up. I do not pay back wrong for wrong, but always answer with kindness. I am joyful always. I pray continually; giving thanks in all circumstances, for this is God's will for me. In Jesus' name, amen.

PRAYER FOR RENEWING THE MIND

The Spirit of truth abides in me and teaches me all things. He guides me into all truth. I have perfect knowledge of every circumstance and opportunity that comes before me. I am not conformed to this world, but I am transformed by the renewing of my mind by the Word of God. I choose to think God's thoughts. I search the Word of God to find out what God says about me and my situation. Then I apply the Word to my life. I think on it,

believe it, and speak it out of my mouth! Because I give the Word of God preeminence in my life, I will profit, increase, and become more productive. I give myself completely over to what God has said, becoming totally engrossed in His commandments. In the name of Jesus, I make a decision to walk by faith and not in fear. I understand now that my heavenly Father has not given me a spirit of fear; instead, He has given me a spirit of power, love, and a sound mind! I don't have to worry about or fear anything, for God has commanded me to cast all of my cares on Him. I have no room for fear because God tells me that, "All your needs are supplied according to My riches in glory by Christ Jesus. Jesus bore all your sins in His own body on the tree, that you, being dead to sins, should live unto righteousness, and by His stripes you were healed."

Heavenly Father, I declare that I possess a hearing heart. I hear from You in specific detail, not in vague impressions. Every word I hear from You empowers me to prosper and excel. You have sent Your Word forth into my heart. I let it dwell in me richly in all wisdom. I meditate in it day and night so that I may diligently act on it. The Incorruptible Seed, the Living Word, the Word of Truth, is abiding in my spirit. I bind my mind to the mind of Christ and loose myself from all wrong patterns of thinking right now, in Jesus name.

PRAYER FOR PROSPERITY

Father I come to you in the name of Jesus, who is the high priest of my confession. I purpose in my heart not to give grudgingly, but carefully, and joyfully, and because I do, Father, You make all grace abound toward me. In the name of Jesus, I declare that I am the righteousness of God. I have been released from the bondage of sin and I am free to exercise my rights as a born-again believer. I have a right to prosper in every area of life. The Word of God is my guarantee that I can speak as God speaks and call into existence everything that I need to succeed.

I take authority over sickness, disease, poverty, and insufficiency, and I rule as a king in life! For poverty He has given me wealth, for sickness He has given me health, for death He has given me eternal life. I have given and it is being given unto me a good measure, pressed down, shaken together, and running over, men give into my bosom. I have paid my tithes and offerings and God has opened the windows of heaven and is pouring such blessings upon me that I hardly have enough room to receive them. I have all sufficiency in all things and abound to all good works, for my God has made all grace abound toward me. There is no lack for my God supplies all my needs, in every area of life, according to His riches in glory by Christ Jesus.

Whatsoever I do shall prosper for I am like a tree planted by rivers of water. I come against all oppression in my life and declare that I have supernatural protection against the onslaught of the enemy. I command the angels of God to go now and bring to pass my financial soundness and wholeness. I am a wise and faithful steward; therefore, I walk in manifested abundance and debtfreedom daily. Just as Abraham believed those first words that God would bless him, I receive His promises and His plan by faith and activate it in my life today! Because I am a born-again believer, I have the foundation to access all the promises of God. I do not fear! Like Abraham, I take God at His Word and put my name on the promises. After all, it's mine! I am the seed of Abraham and an heir of the promise.

Jesus took my sin, sickness, failure, and spiritual death and gave me back His righteousness, health, success, and eternal life. He paid the price for all these benefits, and He freely gives them to me when I ask in faith. As I grow in patience, at an equal rate, I will gain peace and joy. Patience is a vital element in my life. I am ready to inherit God's great and precious promises (healing, protection, financial provision) because I have the element of patience working in my life. I praise the Lord for His goodness. I bring the sacrifice of thanksgiving, and declare His works with rejoicing. I thank Him for the spiritual and material blessings in my life. In Jesus' name, amen.

PRAYER FOR PROTECTION

I declare that no matter what happens around me, I have a covenant of peace with God, and His love, kindness, and favour will never depart from me. My enemies cannot triumph over me because the Lord has favoured me. God surrounds and protects me with favour like a shield.

Father, I am established in Your Word. I declare that I am preserved from trouble. I overcome trouble by the blood of the Lamb and the word of my testimony. I am established in righteousness through Jesus. As the redeemed of the Lord, I declare this to be so right now. In the name of Jesus, I dwell in the secret place of the Most High God and abide under the shadow of the Almighty. The Lord is my Refuge and Fortress. He delivers me from the enemy; therefore, I do not fear the terror in the night or the destruction that takes place at noonday. There is nothing to fear, for God is with me. I do not look around me in terror and feel dismayed, for He is my God. He will strengthen and harden me to difficulties, and will help me. He will hold me up and retain me with His victorious right hand of righteousness and justice. I thank God for His protection and care.

PRAYER FOR THE GOVERNMENT

1 Timothy 2:1-2 says that we are to pray, intercede, and give thanks for kings and all people in authority. This is God's command to every believer today. Here is a confession for you to use in prayer for our nation and its leaders. Pray it in faith, believing, and remember God watches over His Word to perform it (Jer. 1:12).

Father, in the name of Jesus, I give thanks for Canada and her government. I bring before You the men and women in positions of authority. I pray and intercede for the Prime Minister, MPs, Supreme Court Judges, RCMP, Premiers, MLAs, Mayors, and Council members of our land. I pray for all people in authority over us in any way. I pray that the Spirit of the Lord rests upon them. I believe that skillful and godly wisdom has entered into the heart of our Prime Minister, and knowledge is pleasant to him. Discretion watches over him and understanding keeps and delivers him from the way of evil.

Father, I ask You to encompass the Prime Minister with men and women who make their hearts and ears attentive to godly counsel and who do that which is right in Your sight. I believe you to cause them to be men and women of integrity, who are obedient concerning us. I believe that they lead us in a quiet and peaceable life in all godliness and honesty. Your Word declares, "Blessed is

the nation whose God is the Lord!" I receive Your blessing and declare with my mouth that your people dwell safely in this land and they prosper abundantly. It is written in Your Word that the heart of the king is in the hand of the Lord, and that You turn it whichever way You desire. I believe the heart of our leaders is in Your hand and that his decisions are divinely directed of the Lord.

I give thanks to You that the good news of the gospel is published in our land. The Word of the Lord prevails and grows mightily in the hearts and lives of the people. I give thanks for this land and the leaders You have given to us, in Jesus' name. I proclaim that Jesus is Lord over Canada!

- 1 Timothy 2:1-2
- Proverbs 2:11-12

• Psalm 33:12

• Proverbs 21:1

CONFESSION: IN HIM

I am a new creation in Christ, old things have passed away, I have become new. I have peace with God through Jesus Christ. I have joy with God through Jesus Christ. I have received an abundance of grace; I reign in life by Jesus Christ. My prayers are answered because I ask in faith in Jesus' name. I lay my hands on the sick and they recover. I have been translated from the power of darkness into the Kingdom of Jesus Christ. I am complete in Him, who is the head of all rule and authority and power. I have been

buried with Him in baptism and raised with Him through faith in God. Jesus blotted out the handwriting of ordinances against me, nailing it to the cross. I have risen with Christ. I seek those things which are above, where Christ sits on the right hand of God. I am hidden with Christ in God. I am renewed in knowledge after the image of God Who created Him. The Word of God dwells in me richly in all wisdom. I teach and admonish others in psalms, hymns and spiritual songs, singing and making melody in my heart to the Lord. I walk in the Light as He is in the Light. I have fellowship with others. The blood of Jesus cleanses me from all sin.

- 2 Corinthians 5:17
- Romans 5:1, 11, 17

• John 14:13

- Mark 16:18
- Colossians 1:13, 2:10-14
- 1 John 1:7
- Colossians 3:1-16

CONFESSION: I BELIEVE

I believe in my heart that God raised Jesus from the dead, and I confess with my mouth that Jesus Christ is Lord. Jesus is my Lord (Romans 10:9-10). I have been born again. God is my very own Father, and I am His very own child (Romans 8:14-15). I am a new creature in Christ Jesus. Old things are passed away; behold, all things are new (2 Corinthians 5:17). I can do all things through Christ who strengthens me (Philippians 4:13). I know I have eternal life. The very life and nature of God is in me (1 John 5:11-

12). By the blood of Jesus, I overcome all the works of the devil (Revelation 12:11). Greater is He that is in me than He that is in the world (1 John 4:4). Jesus said He would never leave me nor forsake me, so I can boldly say, "The Lord is my Helper, I will not fear what man can do to me." (Hebrews 13:5). It is God who works in me both to will and to do of His good pleasure (Philippians 2:13). I have been made the righteousness of God in Christ Jesus (2 Corinthians 5:21). My God supplies all my need according to His riches in glory by Christ Jesus (Philippians 4:19). The Lord is my shepherd, I shall not want or lack for any good thing (Psalm 23:1). The Lord is the strength of my life. I am strong in the Lord (Psalm 27:1). Thanks be unto God, who always causes me to triumph in Christ, and diffuses the fragrance of His knowledge by me in every place (2 Corinthians 2:14). There is therefore now no condemnation to those who are in Christ Jesus, who walk not after the flesh, but after the Spirit (Romans 8:1). The law of the Spirit of life in Christ Jesus has made me free from the law of sin and death (Romans 8:2). For in Him dwells all the fullness of the Godhead bodily. I am complete in Him, which is the head of all principality and power (Colossians 2:9-10). For God has not given me a spirit of fear, but of power, and of love, and of a sound mind (2 Timothy 1:7). I say unto this mountain, be thou removed, and be thou cast into the sea; and I do not doubt in my heart. I believe that those things that I say shall come to pass. I will have whatever I say (Mark 11:23).

CONFESSION: IN JESUS

In Jesus I reign in life (Rom. 5:17). In Jesus I walk in newness of life (Rom. 6:4). In Jesus I am alive unto God (Rom. 6:11). In Jesus I bring forth fruits unto God (Rom. 7:4). In Jesus I have no condemnation (Rom. 8:1). In Jesus I have been made free from the law of sin and death (Rom. 8:2). In Jesus I live by the law of the Spirit of life (Rom. 8:2). In Jesus I am a child of God (Rom. 8:16). In Jesus I am an heir of God (Rom. 8:17). In Jesus I am a joint-heir with Christ (Rom. 8:17). In Jesus I freely receive all things from God (Rom. 8:32). In Jesus I am more than a conqueror (Rom. 8:37). In Jesus nothing can separate me from the love of God (Rom. 8:38-39). In Jesus I am sanctified (1 Cor. 1:2). In Jesus I am enriched in all knowledge (1 Cor. 1:5). In Jesus I have wisdom (1 Cor. 1:30). In Jesus I have righteousness (1 Cor. 1:30). In Jesus I have sanctification (1 Cor. 1:30). In Jesus I have redemption (1 Cor. 1:30). In Jesus I shall be resurrected (1 Cor. 15:20-22). In Jesus I have victory over death (1 Cor. 15:57). In Jesus all the promises of God are yes and amen to me (2 Cor. 1:20). In Jesus I am established (2 Cor. 1:21). In Jesus I am anointed of God (2 Cor. 1:21). In Jesus I always triumph (2 Cor. 2:14). In Jesus I am a sweet fragrance to God (2 Cor. 2:15). In Jesus my mind is renewed and enlightened (2 Cor. 3:14). In Jesus I am a new creature (2 Cor. 5:17). In Jesus I have the ministry of reconciliation (2 Cor. 5:18). In Jesus I am an ambassador for God (2 Cor. 5:20). In Jesus I am

made the righteousness of God (2 Cor. 5:21). In Jesus I live by the power of God (2 Cor. 13:4). In Jesus I have liberty (Gal. 2:4). In Jesus I am redeemed from the curse of the law (Gal. 3:13). In Jesus I have the blessing of Abraham (Gal. 3:14). In Jesus I am a son of God (Gal. 4:7). In Jesus I have faith which works by love (Gal. 5:6). In Jesus I am blessed with all spiritual blessings in heavenly places (Eph. 1:3). In Jesus I have been chosen before the foundation of the world (Eph. 1:4). In Jesus I am accepted of God (Eph. 1:6). In Jesus I have the life of God (Eph. 2:5). In Jesus I now sit in heavenly places (Eph. 2:6). In Jesus I have the exceeding riches of God's grace and kindness (Eph. 2:7). In Jesus I am His workmanship (Eph. 2:10). In Jesus I am created for good works (Eph. 2:10). In Jesus I am built together for a habitation of God through the Spirit (Eph. 2:22). In Jesus I have boldness and access with confidence before God (Eph. 3:12). In Jesus I am a shining light (Eph. 5:8). In Jesus I am strong in the power of God's might (Eph. 6:10). In Jesus I have the high calling of God (Phil. 3:14). In Jesus I do not worry (Phil 4:6). In Jesus I have the peace of God which passes all understanding (Phil. 4:7). In Jesus I have the peace of God which guards my heart and mind (Phil. 4:7). In Jesus I have strength (Phil. 4:13). In Jesus I can do all things (Phil. 4:13). In Jesus all my needs are met according to God's riches in glory (Phil. 4:19). In Jesus I have been delivered from the power of darkness (Col. 1:13). In Jesus I have been translated into the kingdom of God (Col. 1:13). In Jesus I have redemption through

His blood (Col. 1:14). In Jesus I have forgiveness of sins (Col. 1:14). In Jesus I am reconciled to God (Col. 1:20). In Jesus I have all the treasures of wisdom and knowledge (Col. 2:3). In Jesus I am made complete and perfect (Col. 2:10). In Jesus my life is hidden with Christ in God (Col. 3:3). In Jesus I have abundant love (1 Tim. 1:14). In Jesus I have obtained salvation with eternal glory (2) Tim. 2:10). In Jesus I am saved to the uttermost (Heb. 7:25). In Jesus I have eternal redemption (Heb. 9:12). In Jesus I have an eternal inheritance (Heb. 9:12). In Jesus I am made perfect in every good work to do His will (Heb. 13:21). In Jesus I have abundant mercy from God (1 Peter 1:3). In Jesus I have a lively hope (1 Peter 1:3). In Jesus I have joy unspeakable (1 Peter 1:8). In Jesus I am a holy priest of God (1 Peter 2:5). In Jesus I am settled (1 Peter 5:10). In Jesus I have fellowship with all believers (1 John 1:7). In Jesus I have received the anointing which teaches me all things (1) John 2:27). In Jesus I have the Spirit of God (1 John 3:24). In Jesus I have overcome the devil, the flesh, and the world (1 John 4:4). In Jesus, God dwells in me (1 John 4:15). In Jesus I have the love of God (1 John 4:16). In Jesus I have no fear (1 John 4:18). In Jesus I overcome the world (1 John 5:4). In Jesus I have victory (1 John 5:4). In Jesus I have understanding (1 John 5:20). In Jesus I know God (1 John 5:20).

CONFESSION: I AM THE RIGHTEOUSNESS OF GOD IN CHRIST

In the name of Jesus, I declare that I am the righteousness of God and that I am safe in His arms. I dwell in the secret place of His protection. God has charged His angels with my protection. My trust is in the Lord and not in man. I refuse to live a life of fear or to give Satan access to my life. I settle my mind and heart, knowing that my life is redeemed from destruction and that no weapon formed against me will prosper. I rejoice in the God of my salvation. Death cannot touch me, because Jesus conquered death for me. God is my refuge and my strength, my very present help in times of trouble. I believe and receive what I have just confessed. In Jesus' name, amen.

CONFESSION: LOVE

My heavenly Father, as I come before Your throne in the name of Jesus, I call all of heaven and earth together that it is to be recorded in heaven, in earth, and beneath the earth, this day, that I am what your word says that I am. I am an heir, and a joint-heir with Christ. And that I know you so well that I recognize your voice when you speak to me, and I obey that voice. This day, I release my love according to your Word in 1 Corinthians 13:4-8. I am very patient and kind, never jealous or envious, never boastful or proud. I am

never haughty or selfish or rude. I do not demand my own way. I am not irritable or touchy. I do not hold grudges, and I hardly even notice when others do me wrong. I am never glad about injustice, but rejoice whenever truth wins out. If I love someone, I will be love to them no matter what the cost. I will always believe in them, always expect the best of them, and always stand my ground in defending them. I never fail, for I am that person you want me to be. God so loved me that He gave His only begotten Son, so now that I believe, I can enjoy eternal life. I am a whole new person in Christ. I love Him because He first loved me. God is love. Because I dwell in love, I dwell in God, and He dwells in me. Nothing can separate me from God's love. And the love of God has been poured out within my heart by the Holy Spirit. I love others as Christ loved me. I am rooted and grounded in love. I bear with others in love. I speak the truth in love. I walk in love. I increase and abound in love toward all men and women. My heart is knit together in love. Perfect love in me casts out all fear.

- 1 Corinthians 13:4-8
- 2 Corinthians 5:17
- Romans 8:38-39, 5:5
- 1 Thessalonians 3:12
- John 3:16, 13:34
- 1 John 4:16-19
- Ephesians 3:17, 4:2, 4:15, 5:2
- Colossians 2:2

CONFESSION: WHAT I AM NOT

I am not sick, for my Lord heals me of all my diseases (Psalms 103:3). I am not bound, for the Son has made me free (John 8:36). I am not defeated, for I am more than a conqueror through Christ who loves me (Romans 8:37). I am not weak, for the Lord will give strength unto His people (Psalms 29:11). I am not without power, for ye shall receive power after that the Holy Ghost is come upon you (Acts 1:8). I am not without peace, because being justified by faith, we have peace with God through our Lord Jesus Christ (Romans 5:1). I am not lacking any good thing, for no good thing will He withhold from them that walk uprightly (Psalms 84:11). I am not overtaken by any evil work, for the Lord shall deliver me from every evil work (2 Timothy 4:18). I am not afraid of any plague, for there shall be no evil befall thee, neither shall any plague come nigh thy dwelling (Psalms 91:10). I am not running from the devil, for I am resisting the devil, and he is fleeing from me (James 4:7). I am not without daily quickening, for He that raised up Christ from the dead shall also quicken your mortal bodies by His spirit that dwells in you (Romans 8:11). I am not shackled by sin, demons, or fear, because thy God whom thou servest continually, He will deliver thee (Daniel 6:16). I am not in a losing battle, for the Lord shall fight for me, and I shall hold my peace (Exodus 14:14). I am not without joy, for His joy shall be in me, and my joy shall be full (John 15:11). I shall not fail to see

God, for blessed are the pure in heart for they shall see God (Matthew 5:8). I am not oppressed by cares, difficulties, or troubles, for I am casting all my cares upon Him, for He cares for me (1 Peter 5:7).

CONFESSION: WHAT I CONFESS, I POSSESS

I confess Jesus as my Lord (Romans 10:9-10); I possess salvation. I confess that by His stripes I am healed (Isaiah 53:5, 1 Peter 2:24); I possess healing. I confess the son has made me free (John 8:36); I possess absolute freedom. I confess the love of God is shed abroad in my heart by the Holy Ghost (Romans 15:5); I possess the ability to love everyone. I confess the righteous are bold as a lion (Proverbs 28:1); I possess lion-hearted boldness in spiritual warfare. I confess He will never leave me nor forsake me (Hebrews 13:5-6); I possess the presence of God each step I take. I confess I am the redeemed of the Lord (Psalms 107:2); I possess redemption benefits every day. I confess the anointing of the Holy One abides in me (1 John 2:27); I possess the yoke-destroying results of this anointing (Isaiah 10:27). I confess in the name of Jesus, I can cast out devils (Mark 16:17); I possess dynamic deliverances as a devil-master. I confess that I lay my hands on the sick and they shall recover (Mark 16:18); I possess positive

healings for the oppressed. I confess I am a branch of the Living Vine (John 15:5); I possess Vine-life wherever I go. I confess I am the righteousness of God in Christ (2 Corinthians 5:21); I possess the ability to stand freely in God's holy presence, and in Satan's presence as a victor! I confess I am a temple of the living God (2 Corinthians 6:16); I possess God dwelling in me, and walking in me! I confess my God shall supply all my need (Philippians 4:19); I possess the supply of every need.

CONFESSION: PARENTS OVER THEIR CHILDREN

That the communication of my faith may become effectual by the acknowledging of every good thing which is in my children in Christ Jesus, I confess that: My children seek first God's kingdom and His righteousness. They receive good gifts from Him. They are disciples taught of the Lord and great is their peace. They love the Lord with all their heart, with all their soul, and with all their might. Because they observe and do all of God's Word, they are prosperous, they deal wisely, have good success, and are walking in divine health. Because they are trained in the way they should go, they do not depart from it. My children obey me in the Lord (as His representative) for this is just and right. They honour, esteem and value me as precious. All is well with them and they will live

long on the earth. I do not irritate or provoke them to wrath. I do not exacerbate them to resentment, but rear them tenderly in the training and discipline of the counsel and admonition of the Lord. Because I correct my children, they give me rest and bring delight to my heart. They prosper and are in health as their soul prospers. God supplies all their needs. They have the wisdom of the Lord. They abound in love toward one another. The fruit of the Spirit; love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, and self-control, shine forth in their lives. They do all things without grumbling, faultfinding, complaining, and questioning. They flee from youthful lusts and pursue righteousness, faith, love, and peace.

- Philemon 1:6
- Isaiah 54:13
- Joshua 1:8
- Ephesians 6:1-4
- Philippians 4:19, 2:14
- 1 Thessalonians 3:12
- 2 Timothy 2:22

- Matthew 6:33, 7:11
- Deuteronomy 6:4-9, 11:18-20
- Proverbs 4:20-24, 22:6, 29:17
- John 2
- James 1:16
- Galatians 5:22

CONFESSION: CHILDREN

I do obey my parents in all things and it pleases the Lord. I honour my father and mother. This is the first commandment with a promise, that all will be well with me, and I will live a long life on

the earth. I am trained in the way I should go and when I am old I will not depart from it. When foolishness is found in my heart, discipline and correction remove it from me. I pay attention to the words of the Lord. I listen to what He is saying. I don't lose sight of God's Words. I let His Word penetrate deep into my heart. For His words are life to me and health to all my flesh. I trust in the Lord with all my heart. I lean not on my own understanding. I know the Lord and He shows me what paths to take.

• Colossians 3:20

- Ephesians 6:2-3
- Proverbs 22:6, 22:15, 4:20-22, 3:5-6

CONFESSION: HUSBAND

I have chosen this day whom I will serve; and as for me and my house, we will serve the Lord. I choose life and the blessing that I, and my descendants, may live; to love the Lord our God, to obey His voice and to hold fast to Him. For He is our life and the length of our days. I dwell in the secret place of the Most High. I remain stable and fixed under the shadow of the Almighty. Because the Lord is my refuge and the Most High is my dwelling place, no evil will befall me and no plague or calamity will come near my family or home. Because I abide in the Word, I deal wisely and prosper in all that I do. Because I am rooted and grounded in love, I bear with others in love and walk in love towards all men. As Christ is the head of the church, I am the head of my wife and responsible to

and for her. I love my wife. I am affectionate and sympathetic with her. I nourish and carefully protect and cherish her. I am willing to give up all for her. Because I live considerately with my wife, honouring her as the weaker vessel, and realizing we are joint-heirs of the grace of life, my prayers are not hindered. My wife and I have become one body, one flesh. Our hearts are knit together in love. We follow after the things which make for peace, and the things which edify each other. We live in peace and follow after peace, because we allow the peace of God to rule in our hearts.

- Joshua 24:15
- Psalms 91:1, 9-10
- Genesis 2:24
- 1 Peter 3:7
- 2 Corinthians 13:11

- Deuteronomy 30:19-20, 29:9
- Ephesians 3:17, 4:2, 5:2, 23-25, 31
- Colossians 3:15, 19, 2:2
- Romans 14:19
- 2 Timothy 2:22

CONFESSION: WIFE

Being confident that He who began a good work in me will continue until the day of Jesus Christ, I confess that: I am a capable, intelligent, and virtuous woman, far more precious than jewels. I rise early and get spiritual food for my household. I seek first God's kingdom and all good things are added to me. I reverently and worshipfully fear the Lord. I give of the fruit of my hands and my works praise me. I am industrious. With my savings,

I plant fruitful vines. Strength and dignity are my clothing and my position is strong and secure. I rejoice over the future knowing that my family and I are ready for it. I open my mouth with skillful and godly wisdom, on my tongue is the law of kindness, and I give counsel and instruction. The bread of idleness, gossip, discontent, and self-pity, I do not eat. I am worthy of respect. I am serious, not a gossiper, but temperate and self-controlled, thoroughly trustworthy in all things. I pursue righteousness, godliness, faith, love, patience, and gentleness of heart. The joy of the Lord is my strength. I am submissive and adapt myself to my husband as a service to the Lord. He is the head of me as Christ is the head of the church. I respect and reverence my husband. I notice, regard, honour, prefer, love, and admire him exceedingly. The heart of my husband trusts in me confidently and relies on, and believes in me safely. I comfort, encourage, and do him only good as long as there is life in me. I walk in love with my husband, esteeming and delighting in him. My husband praises me above all women.

- Philippians 1:6
- Matthew 6:33
- Nehemiah 8:10

- Proverbs 31:10-31
- 1 Timothy 3:11, 6:11
- Ephesians 5:2, 22-23, 33

CONFESSION: STUDENT

Because I have what I say, I confess that I am good in God's sight. Therefore, He has given me wisdom, knowledge, and joy. If I lack wisdom in any area, I ask God for it and He gives it to me with an open hand, generously, and without reproach. I am in Christ Jesus and He is made unto me all wisdom. I praise you Father God for leading me into all truth. Because I renew my mind daily, and I am diligent to present myself approved to God, I am not ashamed. I am able to rightly handle the word of truth. I get good grades on all my exams. I can remember what I read, as the Holy Spirit brings all things to my remembrance. The Lord has given me the tongue of the learned to speak what I know with confidence and boldness. I am a light of the world and I bear witness of that light. I find favour with my teachers and fellow students. I do not waste my time, but I do all things properly and in an orderly manner. I discipline my body and keep it under control, keeping it rested and healthy, so that my mind is sharp and alert. I put a guard over my mouth to speak only the truth in love. I thank you Father that I have the mind of Christ, and I can do all things through Christ who gives me strength.

- Ecclesiastes 2:26
- 1 Corinthians 1:30, 14:40
- John 16:13, 14:26
- Isaiah 50:4
- Proverbs 3:3
- Ephesians 4:15

- James 1:5
- 1 Corinthians 9:27, 2:16
- 2 Timothy 2:15
- Matthew 5:14
- Psalms 141:3
- Philippians 4:13

CONFESSION: YOUTH

That the sharing of my faith may become effective by the acknowledgement of every good thing which is in Christ Jesus, I confess that: I seek first the kingdom of God and His righteousness and receive good gifts from Him. I am a good disciple, taught of the Lord, and great is my peace. I love the Lord with all my heart, all my soul, and all my might. Because I am careful to do all that is in God's word, I am prosperous. I deal wisely, have good success, and walk in divine health. Because I have been trained in the way I should go, I will not depart from it. My parents love and discipline me, and I obey them in the Lord for this is just and right. I honour, esteem and value my parents as precious. All is well with me and I will live long on the earth. My parents do not irritate me, but rather they bring me up tenderly with true Christian training and advice. I give my parents rest and bring delight to them. I prosper and am in health, even as my soul prospers. God supplies all my needs. I have the wisdom of the Lord. I abound in love towards others. The fruit of the Spirit; love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, and self-control, shine out from my life. I do all things without grumbling, complaining, or finding fault in others. I run from youthful lusts and pursue righteousness, faith, love, and peace.

• Philemon 1:6

- Matthew 6:33
- Deuteronomy 6:4-9, 11:18-20
- Isaiah 54:13

• Proverbs 4:20-24, 22:6

• Joshua 1:8

• Philippians 4:19, 2:4

• James 1:6

• Galatians 5:22-23

• Proverbs 13:24, 29:17

• Ephesians 6:1-4

• 2 Timothy 2:22

• 1 Thessalonians 3:12

CONFESSION: FAITH

My faith is the substance of things I hope for, the evidence of things I do not see. By faith I understand that the worlds were framed by the Word of God so that what I see was not made out of things which are visible. My faith pleases God. I believe that He exists and that He is my rewarder, for I earnestly and diligently seek Him. I trust in the Lord with my whole heart and I lean not to my own understanding. In all my ways I acknowledge Him and He directs my paths. I walk by faith and not by sight or appearance, because I know that things that are seen are temporary but things that are unseen are eternal. When I walk by faith I do not sin. Being empowered by faith, I am fully persuaded that what God promises, He will do. God has given to me the measure of faith. Because I am born of God, I have overcome the world by my faith. My faith comes and is awakened by hearing, and hearing by the Word of God. The Word of God profits me because I mix it with faith. I build myself up in my most holy faith by praying in the Holy Spirit. I have faith and doubt not, therefore, all things are

possible to me. My faith doesn't waver. I set my eyes on Jesus, the author and finisher of my faith. Whatever I ask for in prayer, having faith and really believing, I will receive. Because I cast my care on Him, I stand firm in faith against the wiles of the devil. I am strong in the Lord and in the power of His might. My faith works by love. My heart is being purified, sanctified and justified by faith, and I have peace with God through the Lord Jesus Christ. My faith has made me whole.

- Hebrews 11:1, 3, 6, 4:2
- 2 Corinthians 5:7, 4:18
- Romans 12:3, 10:17, 5:1
- Jude 20
- James 1:6-8
- Ephesians 6:10
- Acts 15:9, 26:18

- Proverbs 3:5-6
- Romans 14:23, 4:20-2
- 1 John 5:4
- Mark 9:23, 5:34
- 1 Peter 5:7-8
- Galatians 5:6
- Matthew 17:20, 21:22

